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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Facilities Planning & Construction 

 
Report on the selection process for Program and Construction Management Services 

 
April __, 2013 

 
 

1. Request for Proposals for Program and Construction Management Services (“RFP”) 
was advertised in local papers of general circulation on July 31, 2012, and posted on 
the Facilities Planning and Construction website.   
 

2. An informational pre-proposal meeting regarding this RFP was held on August 15, 
2012 at the District’s Facilities Operations Center to present the RFP and answer 
questions to prospective proposers.   
 

3. The RFP was amended three (3) times to provide a further deadline for submission of 
proposals.  Six (6) proposals were submitted. 
 

4. On December 20, 2012, the District and two (2) Chief Facilities Officers from other 
school districts, meet to evaluate the six (6) proposals to determine the firms that 
would be invited to interview. The Evaluation Committee was comprise of the 
following members: 
 

a. Keith Holtslander, Director of Facilities & Construction 
b. Luis Freese, Maintenance & Operations Executive Director   
c. Lew Jones, Facilities Director Berkeley Unified School District 
d. Steve Adamo, Director Maintenance and Construction, San Jose Unified 

School District 
 

Each committee member was provided a copy of each proposal received, a copy of 
the Selection Criteria and Evaluation Criteria (developed by District’s facilities legal 
counsel), a Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form and a scoring sheet. 
 

5. Firms’ Proposals were evaluated based the following criteria:  
a. Experience with OPSC, CDE, DSA, and Title 24 requirements and similar 

projects;  
b. Experience of Staff Proposed;  
c. Experience using Primavera;  
d. Proposed Methodology and Capabilities;  
e. Access to Resources;  
f. Quality Control Systems;  
g. Cost and Pricing;  
h. Past Performance; 
i. Overall Responsiveness and Completeness of Proposal; and 
j.  Overall Appearance and Effort in the Proposal 

 
 

6. The top four (4) scoring firms were invited to interview with the District’s Selection 
Committee.  The firms selected to interview were RGM, SGI, DACM, and Roebbelen. 
 

7. The firms invited to interview with the District’s Selection Committee were notified of 
the interview date, time and location and each were provided a summary of the 

Exhibit FI3-02

Page 1 of 2



information to present in firm’s interview. 
 

8. Interviews were held at the District’s Facilities Operations Center on Monday, March 
25, 2013.  The Selection Committee was comprised of the following members: 
 

a. Magdy Abdalla, Chief Engineering Officer 
b. Keith Holtslander, Director of Facilities & Construction 
c. Luis Freese, Maintenance & Operations Executive Director   
d. Lew Jones, Facilities Director Berkeley Unified School District 
e. David L. Goldin, Chief Facilities Officer, San Francisco Unified School District   

 
Following oral presentations, the Selection Committee provided for a time for a 
question/answer session. 
 

9. Firms were evaluated based on their understanding of the requirements and needs of 
the District’s Capital Program as demonstrated by their project teams.  Firms were 
rated on the completeness of their understanding of the District’s Capital Program 
and their demonstrated ability to meet the District’s Capital Program needs.  Based 
on the Selection Committee’s evaluation, the Committee made the following 
Recommendation: 
 

• Given SGI’s invaluable institutional knowledge regarding the District’s Capital 
Program, SGI should be retained to perform Program Management services.   
Roebbelen should be retained to provide Construction Management services 
because it has greater demonstrated construction management experience 
and skills.   The Selection Committee agreed that RGM could be appropriate 
for certain select, construction management projects, but RGM did not have 
sufficient experience or capacity to perform the entire Program/Construction 
Management services. Finally, the Selection Committee agreed that DACM 
was not sufficiently experienced to provide the services required by District’s 
Capital Program. 
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Madeline Kronenberg: I’m ready. 

Charles Ramsey: Okay, thank you and welcome everybody today. And I’m going to do 
roll call. Ms. Kronenberg? 

Madeline Kronenberg: Present. 

Charles Ramsey: Mayor [ph?]. 

Mayor: Present. 

Charles Ramsey: Both men are here. We’re gonna move something up on the agenda. 
So I have a couple of comment and I’m gonna take C4 first. And then I want to get to the 
business stuff and <inaudible>. And can I get a _______ in the beginning. 

Mayor: <inaudible> 

Charles Ramsey: And then I recommend they were fine, move approval of minutes? 

Madeline Kronenberg: Second. 

Charles Ramsey: Okay, all in favor? 

Group: Aye. 

Charles Ramsey: Next meeting will be May 14th, Saturday, it’s the week after debt and 
labor issues. So we’ll have a lot to talk about. So, May 14th is fine [ph?]. I look forward to 
it. All right? 

Bill Fay [ph?]: Yeah. 

Charles Ramsey: Public comment: How many speakers do we have today? One, two-- 
any other— There are no other ones? Will the two people please come up? Say your 
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name, spell it for the record, because we want to make clear that we reflect it in the 
minutes. So, if you say your name and you have a last name “Smith,” still spell it out. 

Paul Haxo: My name if Paul Haxo. The last name is spelled H-A-X-O. I’m a district 
employee. I’m here to speak on behalf of Stege [ph?]  School and was wondering what 
the process and progress of the ________ construction project is. I understand that we’re 
waiting for the project at Coronado [ph?] for part of <inaudible>, but I understand that’s 
<inaudible> go out for bid, if I understand? 

Charles Ramsey: Yeah, it’ll be out to bid midnight tonight [ph?].  

Paul Haxo: So at that point we’re wondering now that there’s been a stoppage in the 
schematic and design-- end of the schematic design phase, _______ at the beginning of 
the construction drawings would begin eventually [ph?] and it would be submitted to the 
S.A. and all that stuff. Just trying to make sure that we’re still on the calendar.. 

Charles Ramsey: Yeah, what we’ll do is we’ll agendize it and get a better, full discussion 
in May, ‘cause we don’t have all the relevant information. The board, obviously, has to 
make choices as to whether they want to prioritize the paperwork. We need to look and 
see what they want to do, but I think it’s an appropriate time to see what we want to do, 
because I think it’s critical, especially since the portables are already there, already in 
place, all ready to go, that once Coronado [ph?] moves out in a couple years, that stage 
[ph?] would move right in and they’d finish up the business [ph?]. <inaudible> 

Chris Hurwitz: My name is Chris Hurwitz. 

Charles Ramsey: How do you spell your first name? 

Chris Hurwitz: C-H-R-I-S. Last name: H-U-R-W-I-T-Z. I am a teacher at Stege 
Elementary and I’m here to find out what the status is about the rebuilding of the school. 

Charles Ramsey: Yeah, that’s an excellent opportunity. Cate Boskoff, do you want to 
speak now? 

Cate Boskoff: Yes. 
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Charles Ramsey: I asked people who had wanted to speak, so please when I ask that, 
recognize it, and then we’ll have a process. I’m trying to run a meeting and I need to 
know how many speakers. Does anybody else want to speak on Stege? Okay, that’s fine. 
So I agree with you. I think it’s appropriate, we need to have a conversation and I’m glad 
you’re here. So we will agendize it and have a full discussion. The architect actually is 
here for Stege and we need to get that back on track. I grew up in that neighborhood, I 
have a lot of clients in that neighborhood, I represent Deliverance Temple, sending [ph?] 
little kids to school there. So I’m very familiar with their _______. I was just saying to Ms. 
Booker about a month ago we’re trying get the _______ going into _______ and so  this 
stage [ph?] is definitely a priority and we’re doing a lot right now to try to get acclimated 
and situated.  

Chris Hurwitz: Thank you. 

Charles Ramsey: And so here we’re excited about it, so I’m glad you’re here and we will 
definitely make sure we have it agendized. And I always tell people the closed mouth 
never gets fed. Some schools never come and they never say anything and we never 
know. So the fact that you’re doing that, that’s wonderful. So that people know you don’t 
want to be forgotten. Okay? And what’s your name? 

Lisa McNally: Lisa McNally. M-C-N-A-L-L-Y. 

Charles Ramsey: And first name-- Lisa? 

Lisa McNally: Lisa. 

Charles Ramsey: L-I-S or L-E-S? 

Lisa McNally: L-I. 

Charles Ramsey: Well, I-- 

<overlapping conversation> 

Lisa McNally: Yeah, I know. I know. L-I-S-A. 
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Cate Boskoff: Could you spell your last name for me? 

Lisa McNally: Capital M, capita-- or “C”, capital N-A-L-L-Y. I’m here on behalf of Stege 
as well, too. Because I heard yesterday that they just nixed the plans to not even go 
ahead with the rebuild. So I don’t know. I mean, I guess I’m here to clear up what’s going 
on-- 

<overlapping conversation> 

Charles Ramsey: Go ahead-- Mr. Abdalla wants to respond to you. 

<overlapping conversation> 

Mr. Abdalla: Somebody must have better news than I do. 

Charles Ramsey: Yeah, it’s shock [ph?]-- ‘cause he told them to move forward and go 
ahead with all the designs. 

Mr. Abdalla: I’m not quite sure where you get that information <inaudible> project 
<inaudible>? 

Lisa McNally: There’s no what? 

Mr. Abdalla: There’s not any direction to start it or they _______ the board. 

Charles Ramsey: They would have to come to us, ‘cause the board directed that those 
projects would either _______ 2010: Williston [ph?], Highland, Valley View, and Stege 
and Richmond High should all continue to move forward. So, I’m surprised that that word 
has gotten out. But, like I said, we’ll have a robust discussion about this on May 14th. 

Lisa McNally: May 14th. In this same meeting room? 

Cate Boskoff: Yes. 

Charles Ramsey: Well, we have to agendize it. 
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<overlapping conversation> 

Charles Ramsey: This is the Brown Act, you know, unfortunately, we just can’t--  

Lisa McNally: I’m just here to represent-- 

Charles Ramsey: Well, I know that. But what we’re saying is that by law and statute we 
as board members have to make sure that if we’re gonna talk about that the public has a 
right to know that it’s public and if other people want to come, then they have an 
opportunity to speak. We had no idea that anybody was coming from Stege, so we have 
to agendize it for the next meeting.  

Lisa McNally: And we can get the word out, so at least they know. 

Madeline Kronenberg: Exactly. This is what I’m gonna ask you to do. Wherever you 
may have heard that, wherever the rumor mill is, rolling around [ph?] Stege, tell them it’s 
not a rumor, the truth is we’re gonna talk about it next time. We’re absolutely gonna 
agendize it and we’re going to let them know it’s very real [ph?]. There’s now way it’s put 
on the backburner. Absolutely up front and center. And I’m all about giving you time-- 
deadlines, right? Basically let’s just cut that till the day we expect to do it on and 
<inaudible> start actually doing that. We’ll do that _______ and we need to do it with all 
of our schools, because that’s what our community’s looking for. I know, that’s what 
you’re looking for. 

Lisa McNally: Mm-hm. Especially when you’ve got these other plans. 

<overlapping conversation> 

Madeline Kronenberg: I know. 

Charles Ramsey: It’s exciting-- 

<overlapping conversation> 

Lisa McNally: --I’m gonna say one-- 
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<overlapping conversation> 

Charles Ramsey: And it is surprising, because I know Mr. Abdalla has specifically made 
sure that Stege didn’t lose their funding. So. I know that’s a school that hasn’t lost its 
funding. So. We’ll see you guys on May 14th. 

Lisa McNally: May 14th. All right, thank you so much. 

Charles Ramsey: Thank you for coming. And we will talk about Stege. 

Lisa McNally: Okay, thank you. 

Charles Ramsey: Okay, C4, subcommittee recommendation for board regarding CM-PM 
request for qualifications. We have Cate Boskoff of Orbach, Huff & Suarez. Is that 
<inaudible>? 

Cate Boskoff: Yes. 

Charles Ramsey: Orbach: O-R-B-A-C-H. Huff: H-U-F-F. Suarez-- Am I on quiz today or 
something?  

Woman: Thank you. 

Cate Boskoff: Good afternoon [ph?] 

Charles Ramsey: Wait a second. I can’t hear you.  

Cate Boskoff: Okay, I’m gonna work with Mr. Fay on this presentation. 

Charles Ramsey: Sure. 

Cate Boskoff: I was asked as a _______ council to come and speak to the process 
that’s called <inaudible> construction health management services. And my firm was 
asked to facilitate or to aid staff in putting together the selection process to ensure that it 
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complied with public conduct code [ph?] government code, end code [ph?] _______ 
assisting closest [ph?] support and-- 

Charles Ramsey: I’m glad you’re characterizing it. For some listeners [ph?], there’s 
nothing in the statue that makes it mandatory. But I’m glad you said the legal process for 
soliciting proposals. That, for me, <inaudible>, but go ahead. 

Cate Boskoff: Okay. Essentially, the RFP for programming construction management 
services was advertised in the appropriate papers July 31, 2012, and also on that same 
day posted on the facilities’ planning and construction website along with _______ site. 
We had an informational pre-proposal meeting on August 15th the facilities operations 
center. District staff was on hand to answer questions that potential proposers might 
have. So, between August 15th and November 30th when the project proposals were due 
there were three times we tried to further [ph?] deadline to allow responders to have 
more time to prepare their proposals. So, again, the proposals were submitted on 
November 30th. A selection committee that was comprised of Mr. Abdalla and two 
facilities’ director-level-- Mr. Abdalla’s level from San José unified and Berkeley Unified. 

Charles Ramsey: Who was it from San José? 

Cate Boskoff: Steve. 

Charles Ramsey: Steve. 

Cate Boskoff: Steve. 

Charles Ramsey: So Ty Williams [ph?] has left down there in San José? 

Cate Boskoff: Ty’s been gone for, like, three years. Let’s see, Keith Holtslander and 
<inaudible>. At the December 20th meeting they reviewed the proposals, they had a 
scoring [ph?] that happened. As a result of that scoring there had been six proposals that 
were received and four made the cut. I was not a part of that. My firm helped facilitate 
that meeting. Subsequent to that, meetings were set up for _______ San José _______ 
budgetary screening [ph?] on March 25th and, again, comprised the two outside facilities’ 
directors. This time it wasn’t Mr. Abdalla. It was Mr. _______ Berkeley unified, and Mr. 
Abdalla, Mr. Holtslander and Mr. Freese. And the four first were given ample time to print 
out— put on their presentations. So I think the entire process went on for about seven 
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hours on the 25th and following that these special _______ recommendations that I 
believe Mr. Fay [ph?] can speak to. 

Bill Fay: So, the selection committee looked at a process that actually bifurcated PM and 
CM. So, you would have one firm do the PM, one firm do the CM. 

Cate Boskoff: Why? 

Billy Fay: Well, because it is-- a program of this size, most programs are bifurcated.  

Charles Ramsey: This program has been huge for the last ten years. 

Bill Fay: I understand. 

Charles Ramsey: And it hasn’t been bifurcated. 

Bill Fay: And I’m talking about other programs-- 

Madeline Kronenberg: Yes, but they received the recommendation. I’ve never seen 
anything that said it should be bifurcated.  

Bill Fay: Well, that-- so the panel looked at retaining Seville as the program manager and 
for perhaps Roebbelen as the construction manager. And so what I wanted to do is honor 
their recommendation, bring it to the board or the subcommittee, to see if that was 
something that you wanted to entertain. 

Charles Ramsey: Well, first of all, I’m gonna let-- I have the performance side of it-- 

Madeline Kronenberg: Me, too.  

Charles Ramsey:  --and I’ve read it. I’ve gone through it and I don’t-- there’s nothing in 
the performance of it that shows anything other than a program-- district is in compliance 
with state laws and regulations. This is the Section on-- that had to deal with compliance 
with state laws and regulations. The district where you have a problem was really on stuff 
we had in terms of trying to get our architects aligned in being able to get good proposals 
in. That has to do with us! So that was the one area that they said needed twenty-six 
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amendments on that. And they were saying that ninety-nine percent of the time invoices 
were paid. Ninety-- of a program this size! Ninety-nine percent. Sixty-five hundred 
invoices and there was only fifty-nine that were even paid after thirty days. So, I’m sitting 
here saying to myself-- in the changes [ph?]-- even though those were requested by us 
half of the time! So, obviously, we’re starting to come up with the new standard, I guess 
he was saying, but once these standards have been kind of exceeded it wasn’t the 
normal thing to do and now we have the green buildings or something standards that 
they were talking about. And so I look at this and I say-- it just says, right here-- and this 
is the stuff that they developed [ph?] preventing or minimizing the number of contractor 
claims against the district. To me, that shows that things are being pretty well run across 
the board. 

Madeline Kronenberg: <inaudible> 

Charles Ramsey: So I don’t-- I’m not gonna make that recommendation, because, for 
me, I look at other programs-- San José unified, It _______ for ten years. They went from 
’02 to ‘012 without _______. The district has more volume [ph?] capacity than us. They 
have a bond program a third of the size of the us: four hundred and twenty-nine million 
dollars in 2002. I know the whole board did nothing after that. And that person is _______ 
that ran that district. Then Dave Bowlin [ph?] in San Francisco’s been there. He blasted 
this district! This _______ write a letter excoriating him for his basically lack of respect for 
West Contra Costa. Well, guess what? After that we passed the re-bond measure, and 
he was disappointed that Bill Savage got the job and he didn’t back in 2003. And then 
finally, I’m not gonna-- I’ll tell you what I think is the biggest conflict: Roebbelen’s one of 
the biggest contracting firms. They bid-- they actually would have been awarded a job, a 
contract job; McCarthy got it, but they bid projects here all the time. And so, for me, I’m 
glad we went through this process, I want to thank Dr. Harter, ‘cause I think it was 
important to be able to look at it with a critical eye, look at it different, but this program is 
not like any other program, just the way we handled the debt limit waiver process. 
Somebody would say, “Oh, you know what? Well, that-- that’s different.” Okay, we have 
shown we can be different and be unique. We can demolish schools in a community 
where they’re not supposed to be demolished. They’re supposed to be monetized, 
because they’re _______ and they’re poor. They’re trapped land-wise. You’re not 
supposed to move kids. We’ve done different things. And so I really said, yeah, maybe 
ten years ago when it first happened for a PM-CM. People questioned it then, but ten 
years later and a billion and a half dollars later and voters approving five [ph?] bond 
measures, I’m proud of the program that I built. And so I’m glad we went through the 
process, ‘cause I’m a lawyer, we want to be able to stay legally sufficient; if somebody 
sues-- ain’t nobody gonna sue anyway-- but if anybody did _______ I told ‘em [ph?], Pat 
Gunn [ph?]. Back then Pat wanted [ph?] to think somebody’s gonna sue, let’s give 
_______. Why? And there was seven bidders, nobody sued. So I’m gonna let Ms. 

Exhibit FI3-03

Page 9 of 14



Kronenberg finish and then I’m gonna make a motion <inaudible> we’ll go from there. But 
she wanted to have some final comments. 

Madeline Kronenberg: Thank you. 

<overlapping conversation>  

Bill Fay: So-- and just to let you know, there were, of course, outside people here. This is 
the first that I heard of Mr. Godin [ph?] describe-- saying anything bad about this 
program. So, on face value, this didn’t have anything to do with performance. This didn’t 
have anything to do with performance. I think that this is real _______ program. We had 
independent people out there. They pushed this conversation and I just wanted to stay 
true to the process. My secondary recommendation is to install SGI as PM-CM. But 
there’s a twist that I’d like to add. So Roebbelen, if they join this program at all, would be 
conflicted from doing contracting. And what I was trying to do is set up a bench. And we 
had four firms, two firms fell out; it didn’t appear that they had any personnel that was 
strong enough to join this team. So, I would ask that would the board give two contracts, 
the Seville being the prime and running the program as they have for the past twelve 
years. 

Charles Ramsey: I appreciate that. I don’t think-- for me, it’s not necessary. And I don’t 
mean to bring Roebbelen in, I don’t want to bring anybody in. I have a performance audit 
that says-- the marriage is working. I don’t even-- 

Mayor: Can I--? 

<overlapping conversation> 

Charles Ramsey: Oh, sure. Go ahead. 

Kronenberg: So this is my point. When I go through this, there is— We're a school 
district and we get grades. initially, when somebody gets an “A,” which is what this looks 
like, you don’t say, “Guess what? I’m gonna bring somebody else in to do your job for 
you, because you did it so well.” Right? If there was something in here that said, “Oh, 
wow. It shouldn’t have this. It should be PMC [ph?]. It should be audited [ph?]. It should 
be run differently,” I would respond to that. I don’t see anything like that. And what I see is 
an interesting exercise that was followed because of a staff interpretation of writing 
codes, but I don’t see anything in this exercise that persuades me that we should leave 
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the system, which is validated by every performance audit that I’ve ever read, that says 
that we’re doing a good job with our program. Our program’s different. Our program’s 
different. And to just suddenly decide that you’re gonna bifurcate-- go in a very different 
direction even though it’s been effective doesn’t make any sense to me.  

Charles Ramsey: I’m gonna share something, ‘cause I’ve been around a long time, from 
the beginning of this program. Turner was the first firm in this program. Turner 
Construction. And I’ll never forget they looked me in the face and they said, “Your 
program’s not big enough.” This was for over forty million dollars, ‘cause they were on the 
_______. Turner SCS [ph?]. 

Mayor: I bet [ph?]. 

Charles Ramsey: Bifurcated system. I had it. They walked away from it. They said, “We 
all know Richmond has the capability to be able to pass one.” I’ll never forget Turner 
[ph?]. There’s all these work alternatives to Turner [ph?] coming up, so all of a sudden it 
costs a hundred and fifty. And now [ph?] it passed three hundred. Then we passed four 
hundred. <knocks on table>.  “Don’t you remember us?” <knocks on table> But it once 
again reminded me that a lot of time people don’t believe you’re capable of doing 
<inaudible>. And we’ve always taught our kids in the district, “You can reach-- _______? 
You can reach for that.” That’s why Roger Farm [ph?] _______ is with the ILC [ph?] 
family [ph?] now at University of Pennsylvania, coming out on projects _______ and he’s 
feeling that ________ _______ city official shaking his hand there in Philadelphia. So I 
understand it’s great, but just because you’ve had something and you think, “Jeez--” It’s 
sort of like me saying to this team, “Hey, we’ve got the Piper Jaffray. We’ve got the DJ De 
La Rosa [ph?].” And they’ve worked their tails off. They’ve done everything. They’ve 
delivered. And all of a sudden I’m gonna go after Brandford [ph?] and say to them, “Hey, 
well, we just need a change, but _______. Our _______, hey, you know, I want in.” I 
don’t think it’s-- it’s not where we’re at in the middle of a program that’s halfway through, 
having to educate and train people, having conflict. It’s just not necessary when I don’t 
see anything success in our program. I mean, for The Times to come out, they didn’t 
criticize the bond program, they didn’t criticize the work. We’re not being criticized for 
what we’re doing in the schools we’re <inaudible>.. We’re just being criticized, because 
we have too much debt. That’s all they can say and report on that. They haven’t said the 
program hasn’t run. 

Madeline Kronenberg: No. 

Charles Ramsey: So and neither has the oversight committee and it’s our-- it’s a board 
decision that __________ they either vote us in or vote us out. So my whole issue is to 
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keep the current situation with Seville Group as the PM and CM. That’s my 
recommendation.  

Cate Boskoff: So as a point of process I wanted to point out that last time we did an RFP 
was in 2001. Now we’ve done one in 2013 and, essentially, we’ll now come back to the 
board with a new contract-- 

Charles Ramsey: Yep. 

Cate Boskoff: --which will give you a five-year run. 

Charles Ramsey: And you have to negotiate [ph?]. 

Cate Boskoff: --under the new RFP. But service contracts have to be renewed or re-
read every five years. So regardless-- 

Charles Ramsey: I disagree with you. 

Cate Boskoff: They have to be renewed. They don’t have to go out for a-- 

Charles Ramsey: Well, I agree we do. We-- 

<overlapping conversation> 

Cate Boskoff: --go through the board. 

Charles Ramsey: We’re making a way-- 

<overlapping conversation> 

Charles Ramsey: --to reward [ph?], to renew the contract like we do-- 

<overlapping conversation> 
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Cate Boskoff But since you’ve done an RFP and you’re selecting them under this new 
RFP, I mean, you’re taking-- instead of throwing out the RFP, you’re selecting the firm 
that’s already in place. 

Charles Ramsey: After the RFP-- you’ve gone through the RFP process, you’ve gone 
through an independent, neutral-- I didn’t talk anybody into-- I didn’t get involved. No 
board member got involved. They went through the process, you went through your own 
screening, you decided who you wanted to interview, they came in and they interviewed, 
you did your scoring, you did your recommendation, and you’re giving us your 
recommendation. That’s great. We rejected it. 

Cate Boskoff: No, that’s-- 

<overlapping conversation> 

Charles Ramsey: And so we’re telling y-- 

Cate Boskoff: You rejected it in part, because-- correct. 

Charles Ramsey: We’re accepting the part <knocking table in emphasis> around the PM 
and we’re also saying that we’re rejecting the part-- we’re not bringing Roebbelen in for 
the CM and we’re saying for <knocking table in emphasis> PM-CM, Seville Group shall 
continue to serve in that capacity under the RFP-- 

<overlapping conversation> 

Cate Boskoff: --that’s a point of process though I think it might be important to start fresh 
with this RFP having been with one that-- that institutes this new contract. Because of 
the-- 

<overlapping conversation> 

Charles Ramsey: That’s fine. I don't have any problem with that. I mean, that you, as a 
lawyer, will sit down and draft a contract with terms and conditions, that’s fine. But-- that’s 
what I do thousands of. I just got out <inaudible>-- 
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<overlapping conversation> 

Charles Ramsey: But I understand what you mean. You’ll have an agreement, not for 
_______ one, but for-- there are thirteen. 

Cate Boskoff: Thirteen. 

Charles Ramsey: But I have to tell you, between me and you, it doesn’t matter, because 
the board action is what really consummates a contract. You could have them write a 
contract up all you want; if the board doesn’t ratify it, it doesn’t matter. Again, you don’t 
have to-- for professional services, you don’t by law have to have a contract. You have to 
have terms and conditions and being worked on. It makes it in the case of lawsuits, it 
clarifies no ambiguity because you have the terms and conditions under which you’re 
working. But I had no problem-- I understand your analysis and what you’re going 
through [ph?], so I made the motion that for PM we accept staff’s recommendation. For 
CM we reject Steph’s recommendation, Roebbelen, and institute Seville Group as the 
one who will be doing construction management. And that’s my recommendation. 

Madeline Kronenberg: I vote with you. 

Charles Ramsey: All right. So that’s-- 

Bill Fay: We’ll bring that back to board on the 24th and then we’ll bring back the contract 
when it’s complete.  

Charles Ramsey: Okay, thank you very much for that, Cate. It’s good to see you. I still 
need you to respond to email for the Ivy League Connection dance.  

Cate Boskoff: <inaudible> 

Charles Ramsey: We had fun watching the-- we always have a kids thank us for 
support. All right, so now we’re on to Dover. 

[recording ends at specified end point] 

#### End of Recording_Facilities_Subcommittee_04_09_13.WMA #### 
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WCCUSD Board of Education  

Meeting Agenda – May 1, 2013 
4 

*CI C.5 Ratification and Approval of Engineering Services Contracts 

Comment: 

Contracts have been initiated by staff using previously qualified consulting, engineering, architectural, or 

landscape architectural firms to assist in completion of the referenced projects.  Many of the firms are 

already under contract and the staff-initiated work may be an extension of the firm’s existing contract with 

the District.  Public contracting laws have been followed in initially qualifying and selecting these 

professionals. 

Recommendation: 

Ratify and approve contracts as noted 

Fiscal Impact: 

Total for this action: $611,947.  Funding sources Measure J Bond and Measure D-2010 Bond. 

*CI C.6 Ratification and Approval of Negotiated Change Orders 

Comment: 

Staff is seeking ratification of Change Orders on the following current District construction projects:   

De Anza HS Replacement Campus; Portola MS CCS @ Downer; Vista HS Portable Tech Labs 1 & 2. 

Change Orders are fully executed by the District upon signature by the Superintendent’s designee.  

Board ratification is the final step required under state law in order to complete payment and contract 

adjustment. 

In addition to normal ratification, approval of the noted Change Orders for the Portola MS CCS @ 

Downer project is required by the Board, with special findings as noted below, because this project is in 

excess of the Public Contract Code limit of 10% of the original contract value.  In accordance with 

Public Contract Code 20118.4, the Board, by ratifying these Change Orders, finds that it would have 

been futile to publicly bid the work in question because of the tight time frames to complete this work 

without affecting the operations of the District, and that the public is best served by having this work 

completed by the contractor on the project. 

Recommendation: 

Ratify negotiated Change Orders as noted 

Fiscal Impact: 

Total ratification and approval by this action:  $607,870.16 

*CI C.7 Approval of Program and Construction Management Contract 

Comment: 

The District undertook a RFP/RFQ process for the Program and Construction Management of the 

WCCUSD Bond Program.  This process was adjunct to the Education Code provisions on contract terms. 

Six firms submitted proposals that were screened by a committee that consisted of facility management 

professionals employed by WCCUSD and other districts that have G.O. Bond Programs.  Four firms 

proceeded to the interview phase by the panel that suggested an alternate approach for these services that 

was presented to the Facilities Sub Committee on April 9, 2013. 
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WCCUSD Board of Education  

Meeting Agenda – May 1, 2013 
5 

The FSC felt that a change in course was not warranted, as the program was already well managed and 

there was no basis to introduce an alternate management solution.  As such, the committee recommends 

maintaining the continuity by awarding a new contract to the Seville Group, Inc., to provide both Program 

and Construction Management Services. 

Staff will negotiate a new contract to be executed by the Superintendent of Schools. 

Recommendation: 

To ratify the Facilities Sub Committee’s recommendation to award a new contract to the Seville Group, 

Inc. 

Fiscal Impact: 

To be negotiated.  Funding sources Measure J, Measure D-2010 & Measure E-2012. 

*CI C.8 Ratification of Staff Awarded Contract (CUPCCAA): JFK Park Restoration – Landscape 

Design Build 

Comment: 

Plans and specifications provided by Facilities Staff to comply with restoration requirements of 

Construction Access, Property Use and Restoration License Agreement with City of Richmond dated 

July 31, 2008.  Scope of work includes design build irrigation and planting for JFK park restoration, 

prepare, irrigate and landscape north side of play yard, prepare and sod south side of play yard, install 

mulch on southwest corner and west side of play yard and install Fibar Chips in play structure area. 

The Superintendent’s designee has approved and executed a contract for the project to Lemings 

Irrigation, Inc., $39,500.  All contracts approved by District staff must be ratified or, in some cases, 

reviewed by the District’s Board.  (California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act 

Resolution # 90-0809 (2009); Educ. Code § 22034) 

Recommendation:  

Ratify staff award of the contract to Lemmings Irrigation, Inc. 

Fiscal Impact: 

$39,500.  Project will be funded from the Measure J. 

*CI C.9 Ratification of Staff Awarded Contract (CUPCCAA): JFK Park Restoration - Paving and 

Fencing 

Comment: 

Plans and specifications provided by Facilities Staff to comply with restoration requirements of 

Construction Access, Property Use and Restoration License Agreement with City of Richmond dated 

July 31, 2008.  Scope of work includes removal of interim perimeter play yard fencing at JFK Park, 

installation of permanent fencing along 41
st
 St. and on south side of Martin Luther King, Jr. Elementary

School staff parking lot, asphalt removal required for fencing, and replacement of asphalt on perimeter 

of play yard.   
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The preliminary estimate for the project was $700,000 so the language for the PLA was not included in the 
bid documents.  The lowest bid was more than one million dollars, which would require the project be 
covered by the PLA.  Considering this information, it is appropriate that the District re-estimate the project 
and rebid.  Therefore it is recommended that the Board take action at this time to reject all bids and 
authorize staff to rebid the project. 

 
 Recommendation: 
 Reject all bids and authorize staff to rebid project. 
 
 Fiscal Impact: 
 Not known at this time.  Funded from the Measure D-2010 Bond. 
 
*CI C.16 Agreement for Program, Project and Construction Management Services between West 

Contra Costa Unified School District and SGI Construction Management (“Agreement”) 
 
 Comment: 

On July 24, 2013 the contract for Program and Construction Management Services with SGI, 
Construction Management was brought to the Board of Education for consent approval, Item C-13. In 
the process of adopting the consent agenda, Director Ramsey requested that the Board approve a change 
to the contract that would remove the Termination for Convenience clause and add a clause affirming 
that the agreement shall be only terminated for cause. 
 
Director Ramsey cited as rational for the removal of the clause a need to keep “the continuity of the 
bond program flowing” and preserve the District’s relationship with SGI, “so that if there is a change of 
board, change of administration . . . . we don’t take something that [was] created over the last 15 years 
and just dismantle it on the whims of individuals”.  The Board unanimously voted to delete the 
termination for convenience clause and add a clause that allows for termination only for cause. 
 
At staff’s direction, legal counsel prepared the requested revisions.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, the item 
is herein re-noticed, as the removal of the termination for convenience provision could be interpreted as 
a material change.  
 
The changes to the Agreement (included in the provided redlin) are in accordance with changes to the 
July 24, 2013 meeting minutes at the August 12, 2013 BOE meeting and recited as  follows: (the new 
language is underlined and the removed language appears as strike-through text) 
 
Recommendation:   
Memorialize revisions for the Agreement for Program, Project and Construction Management Services 
as changed between West Contra Costa Unified School District and SGI Construction Management. 

 
 Fiscal Impact: 
 To Be Determined 
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From: David <dhpage@verizon.net>
Sent: Friday, November 13, 2015 5:11 PM
To: Ernie Cooper; Jenny Dominguez
Subject: FW: SGI JAN Payment???

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Ms. Dominguez/Mr. Copper, 

Here is an email string involving Mr. Davis (MBCM) and Mr. Stauffer that started in the transfer of staff MBCM to 
Amanco. 
This may give you some background. 
 
David Page 
 

 

From: John Stauffer [mailto:johnjstauffer@att.net]  
Sent: Friday, March 01, 2013 11:31 AM 
To: 'Leroy Davis' 
Cc: David Page 
Subject: RE: SGI JAN Payment??? 
 

Thank you, Leroy. I’m truly sorry to hear about your mother’s declining health … I fully understand the need to “drop 
everything” having cared for my mother for the final 6 years of her life after finding her near death on a chance visit back 
to CT. Very glad to see that your priorities are in order … you’re doing the right thing … WCCUSD issues are insignificant 
and temporal compared to living with the regrets resulting from “family-comes-second” decisions.  

You’ve always been instant turn-around or better, I know this, I greatly appreciate this, and I’m well aware where the fault 
lies these 2 plus years. 

I apologize for having been exhausted by SGI’s financial and professional gross irresponsibility towards myself and others 
that are told that we’re “one team” … only to watch paycheck distribution at month end for that months work effort while 
we’ve  been 1-month plus as many as 4-additional-months behind current month due solely because of SGI’s failure to 
pay MBCM.  

This has gone way beyond SGI hiding behind requesting “professionalism” while practicing something bordering on 
indentured servitude. Month after month, year after year, no one from SGI management has ever come to me to explain a 
payment delay let alone offer an apology … while month after month I’ve gone to SGI management to request that they 
please look into expediting payments weeks and often months late. 

Again, my apologies to you for having to say “I’ve lost all patience” with a situation solely resulting from SGI’s attitude 
towards timely payment of consultant firm invoices. 

My thoughts … my concerns … my prayers, are with your mother, your family, and you. Sincerely - John 

John Stauffer 
San Francisco, CA 
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M 415-385-0065 
johnjstauffer@att.net 
 
 

From: Leroy Davis [mailto:ledavone@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Friday, March 01, 2013 10:00 AM 
To: John Stauffer 
Cc: knassab@sgicm.com 
Subject: Re: SGI JAN Payment??? 
 

John, 

 

We did get paid for December, I pick up the check, however, I have an emergency and had to fly back to DC.  My mother 
is gravely ill! I dropped everything and left. I will be back on Monday I hope.   

 

John I have actually been paying you in advance of getting paid by Seville since September.  My mother's issues 
withstanding, I will try to get a check to you by Monday.  Continue to bring your issues forward, however, maintain 
discretion.  The entire issue of invoicing and contracts are somewhat political, problematic and controversial.  Therefore, 
I highly recommend that you maintain complete reticence on this subject unless you can discuss the matter discreetly 
and in private with Seville's managers.  I would not discuss these issues in a public forum.  I have received feedback that 
you are airing laundry publicly and it has made some people uncomfortable. 

Leroy Davis 

Principal 

MBCM LLC 

1425 k st. NW. Washington DC 20005 

202‐266‐9909 office 

202‐587‐5600 fax 

818‐625‐0246 cell 

Ledavone@yahoo.com 

 
On Mar 1, 2013, at 8:52 AM, "John Stauffer" <johnjstauffer@att.net> wrote: 

Leroy – Another month – another request to Juan to make certain that SGI paid you … mentioning yet 
again that you’ve always turned around payments same-day.  

Juan was told by SGI that they’re current ... often a very subjective interpretation on their part! Let me 
know “true or false”, so that I can have Juan continue to work on payment finally being made. 
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Thanks - John 

John Stauffer 
San Francisco, CA 
M 415-385-0065 
johnjstauffer@att.net 
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From: Fay, Bill <BFay@wccusd.net> on behalf of Fay, Bill
Sent: Monday, July 02, 2012 1:58 PM
To: Coyne, Martin
Cc: Abdalla, Magdy;Gamba, Sheri;Holtslander, Keith
Subject: FW: SGI Fee Schedule
Attachments: image001.png; image002.png; image003.png; image004.png; image005.png

Importance: High

Martin, 
 
Please audit SGI invoices for mileage, vacation / illness and any other extraneous expenses billed to the district over the 
last three years and prepare a finding.  As this process is already underway, please advise a likely timeframe when this 
task can be accomplished. 
 
Bill 
 
Bill Fay 
 
Associate Superintendent ‐ COO 
 
 
West Contra Costa Unified School District 
1108 Bissell Avenue 
Richmond, CA.  94801 
 
(510) 231‐1105 (Office) 
 
(510) 236‐0190 (Facsimile) 
 
bfay@wccusd.net<mailto:bfay@wccusd.net> 
 
 
Confidentiality Notice:  This email and any files attached may contain confidential information that is legally privileged.  
If you are not the intended recipient, or a person responsible for delivering it, you are hereby notified that any 
disclosure, copying, distribution or use of any of the information contained in or attached to this transmission is strictly 
prohibited.  If you have received this transmission in error, please destroy the original transmission and its attachments 
without reading or saving in any manner 
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TSS reviewed the District’s Financial Audit for 2012-13. Crowe Horwath LLP conducted the 

2012-13 financial audit of the District and issued an unqualified audit opinion. TSS noted that 

Crowe Horwath LLP’s financial audit report identified a couple of significant deficiencies in the 

District’s accounting of student body funds not considered to be material weaknesses based on 

their limited purpose review of internal controls over financial reporting and disclosed no 

instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 

Auditing Standards. These deficiencies were not noted in their review of bond funds.  TSS also 

verified that Crowe Horwath LLP concluded for the items tested, nothing came to the auditor’s 

attention that the District had not comply with state laws and regulations.  

 

Observations 

 

 In TSS’s review of SGI invoices, an invoice listed detailed personnel charges of SGI 

employee’s vacation and sick hours that were charged to the District. Typically, 

contracting agencies do not compensate an independent contractor for their employee’s 

vacation time, sick time, and other fringe benefits.  

 

 In TSS’s review of the District’s legal invoices charged to bond funds, it was noted that 

one of the legal cases has incurred more than $2.8 million to date in legal fees as of June 

30, 2013. The majority of the legal fees are hourly professional charges that resulted from 

preparation for a legal matter in which the court case has been postponed on several 

occasions. It was also noted that only one signature (the Associate Superintendent of 

Business) is required to approve these legal invoices.  

 

Recommendations 

 

 It is recommended that the District review SGI’s management contract to determine 

whether SGI’s employees’ vacation and sick hours are valid charges in accordance with 

the contract.  

 

 It is recommended that the District closely monitor and control the legal costs of the high 

cost litigation case in which they are embroiled, to ensure the costs are reasonable and 

appropriate.  

 

 

District Response 

 

 The District concurs with both recommendations. 
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